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Learning Consortium Request for Proposal 
Questions & Answers 

Posted: 09/05/2019 
 

1. Is there any flexibility in the interview scheduling, e.g., either an opportunity to interview upon my 

return and/or ability to participate via phone/zoom?  

• Answer: As detailed in Section IX. Section Process and Review Criteria, the interview dates are 
and subject to change at First 5 LA’s sole discretion. Additionally, Interviews will be held either at 
First 5 LA or via phone. To accommodate proposers, First 5 LA may extend the window of time 
for the interview and provide the ability to participate via phone, however this is not guarantee.  

 
2. Section VIII Terms of Project states, the Commission expects to enter into a 12-month initial 

agreement with an anticipated start date of October 2019.  In Section I Timeline for Selection 
Process, the contract start date is 01/10/2020.  I understand the dates detailed in the Timeline for 
Selection Process are subject to change at First 5 LA’s sole discretion, but can you give an 
indication of your latest thinking about the contract start date?  

• Answer: The anticipated contract start date is January 10, 2020 as detailed in Section I Timeline 
for Selection Process.   

 
3. Would our agency meet the legal requirements with respect to a permanent office in LA County? 

We have a worker-owner who is permanently based and works in Los Angeles County, but our 
business mailing address is in Joshua Tree; we do not have a physical, brick and mortar, office 
location.   

• Answer: To be eligible, proposers must have a permanent office location in Los Angeles County. 
Permanent office must be a brick and mortar location. First 5 LA reserves the right to request 
additional information, if needed, to validate eligibility requirements. 

 

4. Can we have the slides once webinar is complete?  

• Answer: Yes. The PowerPoint presentation and recording of the Informational Webinar can be 
accessed on our Funding Center at https://www.first5la.org/funding/learning-consortium-request-
for-proposals-rfp/  

 

5. How many awards are anticipated?  

• Answer: One proposer will be awarded for this project. 
 

6. The RFP Timeline indicates that the contractor will be selected on 10/24/2019. Will the 

unsuccessful proposers also be notified on 10/24/2019?  

• Answer: Yes, unsuccessful proposers not selected for award will receive a notification via email.  
 

7. Can you please clarify what is needed for the proposer's audit/tax returns to be submitted?  

• Answer: Please refer to Section X – Required Documents (page 14 of RFP) for specific financial 
statements that must be submitted in accordance with the proposer’s entity type.  

• Non-Profit Organizations: One (1) complete, unqualified Independent Financial Audit OR 
two (2) consecutive years of Form 990. Audit and Form 990s should be no older than 
2016.  
 

• For Profit Organizations: Financial Audit, if available OR most recently completed tax 
return. Audit and tax return should be no older than 2016.  
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8. As part of the budget allocation, does the selected proposer need to include food, venue, 

transportation, and interpretation costs for the convenings?  

• Answer: Yes. The proposed budget should include all anticipated cost associated with carrying 
out the scope of work, including the cost of convenings that may include food, venue, 
transportation, and interpretation costs.  

 
9. Is it expected that the contractor incurs the costs of any convening, in-person gathering (e.g. 

quarterly convenings) and therefore should include estimated costs in the budget proposal?  

• Answer: Yes. Since this will be a cost-reimbursement agreement, it is expected that the contractor 
incurs the costs of associated with carrying out the scope of work, which may include convening 
and in-person gatherings. The full cost estimates of carrying out the scope of work for this project 
should be included in budget proposals.  

 
10. In regard to not using an audited rate for direct labor, fringe and direct expenses, prorated based 

on lease/sq. footage rent, telephone, postage, supplies, travel and mileage, training, evaluation, 

etc. It seems this creates more work for the proposer than using a pre- accepted and calculated 

rate. Am I misreading this?  

• Answer:  Please refer to Appendix F – Budget Instructions for instructions on how to complete the 
budget. As detailed in Appendix F, indirect cost cannot exceed 10% of total contract amount 
(excluding subcontractors, capital expenditures, equipment and depreciation expense).  

 

11. What are the terms for grant reporting?  

• Answer: Grant reporting could include, but not limited to, monthly, quarterly, semi-annual reports, 
and team check-in calls on progress. Grant reporting requirements will be negotiated with the 
selected proposer. 

 
12. The Communities Department partners currently include the current grantees overseeing Best 

Start investments across 5 regions and 14 communities.  Is there an allocation in the funds the 
grantees are currently receiving for them to participate in a Learning Consortium?  

• Answer: The Reginal Network (RN) grantees have no direct allocation to fund their participation 
in the Learning Consortium. However, the RN grantees, per their Scope of Work, are expected to   
actively participate in a peer learning space.  

 
13. Communities Department partners currently include community policy advocacy 

organizations.  Are these organizations also current grantees?  If yes, is there an allocation in 
their grants to participate in a Learning Consortium?  

• Answer: Yes. Some current Communities Department partners may be described as community 
policy advocacy organizations and have been First 5 LA past and current grantees. There has 
not been any funding or allocations dedicated to support First 5 LA’s grantee participation in the 
Learning Consortium.  
 

14. Objective #2 in the Scope of Works states, the selected proposer will work to implement and 
continuously improve designed peer learning structure and processes outlined in Objective 1.  In 
the informational webinar, it was mentioned that the proposer could also work to continuously 
evolve the designed peer learning structure.  Is First 5 LA open to a developmental approach that 
focuses to continuous development, which assumes a complex context, as opposed to 
continuous improvement, which assumes a more static context?  

• Answer: First 5 LA is open to consider all viable approaches (continuous improvement and 
continuous development) that will ensure a peer learning structure that takes into consideration 
learning and feedback from participants and maximizes the opportunity for meeting Objective #1 
and #2.  
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15. Can you provide more information about the design, methods, locations, and most useful (and 

less than useful) aspects of Communities Department’s past and existing peer learning efforts—
Learning Community and Regional Network Grantee Community of Practice.  

• Answer: Please refer to page 8 of the RFP for the key learnings from the peer learning efforts. 
Additional information about Communities peer learning effort will be shared with the selected 
proposer.  

 

16. Even if they are not complete, would it be possible to see a draft of First 5 LA’s Impact Framework 
and the Communities Department’s learning agendas?  

• Answer: Please refer to recent First 5 LA Board of Commissioners Board Materials 
(https://www.first5la.org/meeting-materials/) for the latest information on the progress of the 
Impact Framework and Communities Department learning agendas. Further information about 
First 5 LA’s Impact Framework  and the Communities Department’s learning agendas will be 
shared with the selected proposer.   

 
17. In considering the team approach, we wanted to confirm that it will be possible to bring on 

additional team members, subcontractors if/after the selection process as the contractor.  

• Answer: Yes. It is possible to bring on additional team members and subcontractors after the 
selected proposers has been awarded. First 5 LA reserve the right to review and approve 
subcontractors throughout the project period.  

 

18.  Is the full Statement of Qualifications only necessary for the prime and not consultants?  

• Answer: The Statement of Qualification applies to both the primary proposer and any proposed 
subcontractors that are anticipated to perform the scope of work for this project. Please reference 
Section X. Required Documents, #2 Statement of Qualifications, sub-question F, which details 
the information proposers must provide if subcontractors are contemplated.  
 

19.  Is there a list of names of the community policy advocacy organizations referenced?  

• Answer: No. First 5 LA does not have a current list of community policy advocacy organizations.  
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